
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 21, 2021 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Dec 21 8:00 a.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 11 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 25 6:00 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jan 25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 

 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. CONSENT ITEMS: 

Minutes – December 14, 2021 – Public Work Session 
Minutes – December 14, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Claims 

Gift Acceptance 
Fundraisers 
Conference Leave Requests 

Grant 
Overnight Trip Request 
Personnel Report 

 
E. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 Renewal of Bus Driver/Helper Retention, Referral, and Sign On Bonus Payments – The 
Administration requests authorization for the Renewal of Bus Driver/Helper Retention, 
Referral, and Sign On Bonus Payments. 

 
 Recommendation for Award – The Business Office recommends awarding the bid for Fuel 

for 2022. 

 
 Recommendation for Award – The Business Office recommends awarding the bid for the 

Transportation Fuel Center. 
 

 Elevate K12 Scope of Work Adjustment for Second Semester – The Business Office 

recommends authorization for Elevate K12 Scope of Work Adjustment. 
 



BOARD AGENDA December 21, 2021 
 
 

2 
   

 Agreement – The Business Offices seek approval of the Agreement for ESSER Project - 
Installation and Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract for Daly, West Side and Elkhart 

High. 
 

 Resolution – The Business Office seeks Board adoption of a resolution to transfer amounts 

from Education Fund to Operations Funds. 
 

 Resolution – The Business Office seeks Board adoption of a resolution to transfer funds 

to/from the Rainy Day Fund. 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2021 – November 30, 2021 

 
 Monthly Insurance Update 

 

F. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 

 From Board 
 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 14, 2021 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. Babette S. Boling 

Present: Dacey S. Davis Kellie L. Mullins 

 Troy E. Scott Anne M. VonDerVellen 

  Douglas K. Weaver 

   

ECS Staff Natalie Bickel Kevin Scott 

Present: Gail Draper Brad Sheppard 
 Tony England Steve Thalheimer 
 Mindy Higginson Beth Williams 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented an update on the Student Services Department’s 
social work and school counseling programs by Assistant Superintendent of 
Student Services, Sarita Stevens; Supervisor of Student Services, Natalie 

Bickel; and Director of Counseling, Gail Draper. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:55 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dacey S. Davis, Vice President 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Troy E. Scott, Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

December 14, 2021 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
7:05 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. Babette S. Boling 
Present: Dacey S. Davis Kellie L. Mullins 
 Troy E. Scott Anne M. VonDerVellen 

  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

President of the Board, Rocky Enfield, called the regular meeting of the 
Board of School Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Board member, Babette Boling, recited the Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mr. Enfield discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

The Moment of Pride was presented by Brad Sheppard, assistant 
superintendent of instruction, and Mindy Higginson, director of 
elementary education.  A video taken throughout the district was shared 

highlighting presentations of awards celebrating the success of PLC 
teams. 
 

Moment of Pride 
 

By unanimous action by roll call, the Board approved the following consent 
items: 

 

Consent Items 

Minutes – November 23, 2021 – Public Work Session 
Minutes – November 23, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting 
Minutes – November 5, 2021 – Special Board Meeting 

 

Minutes 

Payment of claims totaling $7,136,958.35 as shown on the 
December 14, 2021, claims listing.  (Codified File 2122-70) 

 

Payment of 
Claims 

The following donation was made to Elkhart Community Schools 
(ECS): $500 from Coulter Specialty Painting and Finishing, and 

$500 from Mrs. Kathy Cora to Osolo for the Angel Tree Gift Giving; 
$300 from the Brian and Amanda Jamison Charitable Grant 
through the Community Foundation of Elkhart County for the EHS 

Boys’ Basketball Feeder Program; $1,000 from NIVA to the EHS 
athletic department; and $500 from Ms. Cheryl Waggoner to offset 
negative lunch balances. 

 

Gift Acceptance 



2 
 

Proposed school fundraisers in accordance with Board policy.  
(Codified File 2122-71) 

 

Fundraisers 
 

Extra-curricular Purchase Request from West Side: to purchase 14 
football helmets in the amount of $1,548. 

 

Extra-curricular 
Purchase 

Conference leave requests in accordance with Board policy for staff 
members as recommended by the administration on the December 

14, 2021 listing.  (Codified File 2122-72) 
 

Conference 
Leave Requests 

 

Overnight Trip Request from North Side Choir for 1 student to 

travel to Fort Wayne on January 13-14, 2022, for Indiana Music 
Education Association’s middle school all honors choir. 
 

Overnight Trip 

Request 
 

 
 
 

A settlement agreement regarding unpaid time for a certified staff 
member.  (Codified File 2122-73) 
 

Employment of the following two (2) certified staff members for 
the 2021-2022 school year, effective on dates indicated:   

Debra Ball – art at Roosevelt, 11/29/21 
Kristine Nass – language arts at West Side, 11/29/21 
 

Temporary reassignment of certified staff member, Katrina 
Barhydt, counselor/mental health coordinator at Elkhart Academy. 
 

Resignation of the following two (2) certified staff members, 
effective on dates indicated: 

Cassandra Kronewitter - special education at PACE, 12/3/21 

Earl Knudson - physical education at Pierre Moran, 12/22/21 
 
Employment of the following ten (10) classified employees, 

effective on dates indicated: 
Dawn Bonney - food service at Feeser, 11/30/21 
Ashley Dench - food service at Eastwood, 12/8/21 

Desiree Diliberti - food service at West Side, 11/29/21 
Sarah Fox - RBT paraprofessional at Riverview, 12/13/21 
Lois Grocke - RBT paraprofessional at Beck, 11/29/21 

Ana May - food service at Commissary, 11/29/21 
Matthieu Miller - custodian at Roosevelt, 12/6/21 
Christene Parks - bus driver at Transportation, 12/14/21 

Teresa Garcia Ponce - social worker at Daly, 12/6/21 
Charles Witte - bus helper at Transportation, 12/6/21 

 

Reassignment of classified employee Debra Ball to certified 
position. 
 

 

Personnel 
Report 
 

Agreement 
 
 

Certified 
Employment 

 
 
 

Temporary 
Reassignment 
 

Certified  
Resignations 
 

 
 
Classified 

Employment 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Reassignment 
 
 

 



3 
 

Resignation of the following eight (8) classified employees, 
effective on dates indicated: 

Debra Bice - secretary at ESC, 12/17/21 
Austin Clanton - mechanic at Transportation, 12/6/21 
William Greene - paraprofessional at EHS, 12/3/21 

Brenda King - custodian at Monger, 10/5/21 
Alan Kist - bus driver at Transportation, 11/29/21 
Hannah Litka - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 11/23/21 

Derria Pratcher - building substitute at Hawthorne, 12/1/21 
Deneen Stout - paraprofessional at Eastwood, 12/3/21 
 

Termination of the following two (2) classified employees effective 
12/14/21 under Board Policy 3139.01S. 

Nathashia deJesus – bus driver at Transportation 

Christine Salazar – bus helper at Transportation 
 

Classified  
Resignations 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Classified 
Termination 
 

Superintendent Thalheimer reported COVID numbers had a slight uptick 

after the Thanksgiving break but have since leveled off.  
 

COVID Update 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the proposed 2022-2023 

School Calendar, as initially presented at the November 23rd regular 
meeting.  (Codified File 2122-74) 
 

2022-2023 

School Calendar 
 

Brandon Eakins, EACC director, present a proposed new course offering 
for the 2022-2023 school year: Advanced Life Science: Plants and Soils, 

for Board review. (Codified File 2122-75) 
 

New Course 
Offering 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the proposed Agreement with 

the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (AFL-
CIO, Local #2925).  (Codified File 2122-76) 

 

Custodial 

Agreement 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to the 
following Board Policies and waived second reading: 

3422.01S - Food Service Employees’ Compensation Plan 
3422.02S - Mechanics’ Compensation Plan 
3422.03S - Bus Drivers’ Compensation Plan 

3422.04S - Bus Helpers’ Compensation Plan 
3422.05S - Support Staff Salary Schedule 
3422.07S - Executive Assistants’ Salary Schedule 

3422.09S - Technical Assistants’ Compensation Plan 
3422.10S – Registered Nurses’ Compensation Plan 
3422.11S - Social Workers’ Compensation Plan 

3422.12S – Employees in Miscellaneous Positions Compensation 
Plan 

3422.13S - Therapists’ Compensation Plan 

3422.14S - Employees in Tech. Services Positions Compensation 
Plan 

3422.15S – Permanent Substitute Teachers’ Compensation Plan 

3422.16S – LPNs’ Compensation Plan 
 

Compensation 
Policies 

 



4 
 

By unanimous action (Enfield abstained), the Board approved and waived 
2nd reading of proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.06 - 

Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan 
 

Board Policy 
3422.06S 

 

By unanimous action (Weaver abstained), the Board approved and waived 
2nd reading of proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.08 - 
Paraprofessional Compensation Plan 
 

Board Policy 
3422.08S 
 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation 
GDBA-10 – Miscellaneous Position Pay Schedule for review. 

Administrative 
Regulation 

GDBA-10 
 

An audience member spoke regarding the need for a mask mandate. 

 

From the 

Audience 
 

Four audience members regarding communication with families regarding 
a security situation at North Side. 

From the 
Audience 

 
Dr. Thalheimer reviewed the chain of events and decision process 
regarding the security situation at North Side  

From the 
Superintendent 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:20 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., President 
 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Dacey S. Davis, Vice President 
 

 

____________________________________ 
  Troy E. Scott, Secretary 
 

 

____________________________________ 
  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 

 

____________________________________ 
  Kellie L. Mullins, Member 
 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Anne M. VonDerVellen, Member 
 

 

  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



To: Board of School Trustees
Superintendent Steve Thalheimer

From: Tony Gianesi

Date: 12/14/2021

Subject:  Gift Acceptance

Monteith Tire donated 12,000 backpack blinkers to the district valued at approximately
$25,000 for distribution to all students.

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and
that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to:

Andrew Peters
1642 W. Beardsley Ave.
Elkhart, IN 46514



 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:   December 14, 2021 
 
TO:       Dr. Steve Thalheimer  
             Board of School Trustees  
 
FROM: Brian Buckley/Jacquie Rost  
             Elkhart High School Athletic Department  
 
RE: Donation Approval – Elkhart Community Foundation 
 
A donation in the amount of $500.00 has been given to the Elkhart High School 

Wrestling Program from the OBECO, INC. This donation will help with the 

continued growth and progression of our wrestling program. 

We are requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this 

donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is 

sent to: 

OBECO, INC. 
P.O. Box 2561 
Elkhart, IN 46515 



School/Organiz
ation Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose

Date(s) of 
Activity

Date 
Submitted Sponsor(s)

Elkhart High - 
National Honor 
Society

NHS will host Mangy's Mane Event: Winter 
Wonder Fair '22 in the EFD gym areas in place 
of a winter dance, that is open to the 
community. There will be concessions, 
games, prizes, bounce houses  and face 
painting. Funds from the carnival will be used 
for NHS sponsored activities/events, 
membership fees, induction ceremony, 
service project materials, student food, and 
NHS sponsored Teacher Appreciation Week.  

1/22/2022 12/9/2021 Jeff Miller

Osolo - PTO The PTO will host a book fair. Proceeds will 
be used for library books and activities. 

12/13/2021 - 
12/18/2021

12/9/2021 Kristin Whitaker

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.







What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

 What is the 

amount

applied for? 

How will the grant funds be used and who 

will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant 

submission 

deadline?

The American 

Rescue Plan – 

Homeless 

Children and 

Youth (ARP-

HCY) II

IDOE Elkhart Community 

Schools

Sarita Stevens- 

Student Services

$95,000.00 The funds will be used to offset 

transportation cost for children 

whose families and experiencing 

homelessness, field trips cost of 

designated students, clothing 

items (coats, gloves, hats, etc) and 

uniforms and fees for 

extracurricular participation. 

School leaders and social workers 

will refer students to Students 

Services Department.

Our overall vision is to know and meet every 

child where they are and offer a equitable 

opportunity for success. Due to multiple events 

that lead to homelessness, we are aware that 

these students basic needs must be meet 

before they are ready to learn. By filling in the 

gaps of basic needs and a sense of belonging, 

this grant will assist us in abating further 

trauma to students that can be caused by 

limited income.

Extra curricular and surplus academic 

activity fees for homeless students -

$25,000.00 

Field Trip Cost - $30,000.00

Clothing and uniforms - $25,000.00

Transportation - $15,000.00

12/29/2021

Page 1 of 1 12/21/21 Board Meeting





 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Dr. Denise Seger 

Date:  December 21, 2021 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee: 

 

Claire Troyer    Osolo/Grade 1 

Began:  8/10/20    Resign:  12/22/21 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of two agreements regarding retention. 

 

 

b. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Yesenia Alvarez   West Side/EL Community Translator 

Began:  10/19/21   PE:  12/13/21 

 

JoeyAnne Blossom   West Side/Food Service 

Began:  10/26/21   PE:  12/20/21 

 

Tanita Bynum    Osolo/Food Service 

Began:  10/20/21   PE:  12/14/21 

 

Jimena Gomez    West Side/Secretary 

Began:  10/26/21   PE:  12/20/21 

 

Taylor Johnson   Beck/RBT Paraprofessional 

Began:  10/26/21   PE:  12/20/21 

 

William Patterson   Career Center/Adult Education 

Began:  10/26/21   PE:  12/20/21 

 

Rebekah Shaw    Daly/Paraprofessional 

Began:  10/26/21   PE:  12/20/21 

 

Chantyle Zilm    Osolo/Food Service 

Began:  10/26/21   PE:  12/20/21  

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

a. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employee:  

 

Joseph Johnson   Roosevelt/Custodian 

Began: 12/11/08   Retire: 1/4/22 

     13 years of service 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees:  

Bryan Dufour    Building Services/Custodian 

Began: 8/20/08    Resign: 1/4/22 

 

David Murray    WVPE/Business Account Mgr  

Began: 4/25/17    Resign: 12/20/21 

 

Jeri Strebinger    Feeser/Food Service  

Began: 10/22/18   Resign: 11/29/21  

    

   

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 To:  Superintendent of Schools 

  Board of School Trustees 

  

From:  W. Douglas Thorne 

  Kevin Scott 

  Tony Gianesi 

  Jon Chevalier 

 

Date:  December 16, 2021 

 

     Re: Bus Driver and Bus Helper Retention payments 

The Administration is seeking authorization to continue paying a retention payment to our bus 

helpers and contracted bus drivers for the upcoming calendar year.  This program has been 

beneficial in the corporation’s efforts to meet the transportation needs of students enrolled in our 

schools. 

The program would, again, operate under the following guidelines.  Bus helpers and contracted bus 

drivers who have successfully completed probation will be eligible to receive a retention payment of 

$250.00 each semester provided they were employed by the school corporation as a bus helper or 

contracted driver for four or more hours each day during the immediately preceding semester, and 

continue in an active employment status as a helper or contracted driver.  Retention payments will 

be made to qualified helpers and contracted drivers during the months of February for the first 

semester and September for the second semester. 

In addition to retention payments for contracted drivers, the district will pay retention payments 

totaling $250 to drivers paid by claim who regularly drive three or more days per week each 

semester.  These payments, like those for contracted drivers, will be paid in February and 

September.  

In addition to this retention program, the administration is seeking authorization to continue its 

successful Driver Recruitment and Referral Program.  This program provides the following incentives 

which serve as inducements for individuals to seek employment in our district as a bus driver: 

 A $1,000 sign on bonus for those individuals who hold a CDL with all proper endorsements. 

Drivers possessing these qualifications who successfully complete probation will receive the 

bonus in four separate quarterly payments of $250.  

 A $500 sign on bonus for individuals without a CDL who successfully complete both the 

school bus driver training program offered by Elkhart Community Schools and probation.   



Page 2 of 2 

 A $250 referral bonus will be paid to any Transportation Department employee who 

recommends a candidate who successfully completes both the school bus driver training 

program offered by Elkhart Community Schools and probation. 

In order for a previously employed bus driver, who has been rehired as a bus driver, to receive the 

sign on bonus or for an employee to receive the referral bonus, the bus driver must have a break in 

employment of three (3) years or more. 

Individuals in training to be a bus driver and qualify for a Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) will be 

paid a rate of $13.25 per hour.  Once the driver candidate is in possession of a CDL, the candidate 

will be paid the bus driver’s probationary rate for attendance at the two (2) day training required by 

the State of Indiana. 

WDT/dls 

 

 



INTERNAL MEMO

TO: DR. STEVE THALHEIMER
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES

FROM: ANTHONY J. GIANESI

DATE: DECEMBER 16, 2021

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION FOR AWARD – FUEL BID 2022

Fuel bids for 2022 were opened on December 15, 2021 by Tony Gianesi, Kevin Scott, Jon
Chevalier, and Sarah Nelson.  After reviewing bids, it is recommended that the 2022 Fuel Bid be
awarded to Ceres Solutions, as the most responsive and most responsible bidder.  Ceres
Solutions/North Central CO-OP has provided fuel for Elkhart Community Schools each year since
2016.

The Ceres Solutions/North Central CO-OP bid is the most responsive as well as the lowest total
bid per contract amount of the bids submitted.  Based upon the bid amounts the Ceres
Solutions/North Central CO-OP is $30,070.00 under the next lowest bidder.

The bid summary reflects fixed pricing, including all applicable taxes and fees, available on the
date of bids.  The Business Office respectfully requests permission to award a fixed price contract
to Ceres Solutions/North Central CO-OP within the next 30 days.  Agreement price will be locked
on a date determined by ECS.

VENDOR FORM
95

FIXED DIESEL FIXED REGULAR TOTAL COST PER
BID DOCUMENTS

CERES X 2.846 2.657 530,317.50

PETROLEUM
TRADERS

X did not bid did not bid n/a

YODER
X

3.013 2.753 560,387.50

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514





No. Description Quantity Unit

1 TOTAL BASE BID 1 LS

$1,119,210.00

1

ALL IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO THE PROPOSED 
ENTRANCE IN THE BASE BID SHALL BE DEDUCTED 
FROM THE TOTAL BASE BID, INCLUDING CONCRETE 
REMOVAL, NEW CONCRETE CURB, NEW CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT, PROPOSED FENCING AND GATE, AND 
THE ENTRY KIOSK.

1 LS

2

IN LIEU OF A PROPOSED NEW CANOPY, THE 
CONTRACTOR SHALL CUT EXISTING SUPPORT POSTS 
OF CANOPIES ON-SITE, SHOP SANDBLAST, PRIME, 
PAINT AND SHOPWELD, RELOCATE AND INSTALL 
THE EXISTING STRUCTURES ON NEW FOUNDATIONS, 
AND PROVIDE NEW LIGHTING AND STORM GUTTERS.

1 LS

$0.00

$1,119,210.00

12/16/2021

Amount

ELKHART HIGH SCHOOL FUEL CENTER ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

$1,119,210.00

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOL CORPORATION

 BID TABULATION 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS TRANSPORTATION FUEL CENTER

December 16, 2021

R. YODER 
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

-$13,500.00

-$16,775.00

$1,358,000.00

Amount

G:\2020 Projects\2020-0004\Bidding
Andrew Cunningham, PLA

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST ESTIMATE - BASE BID $1,358,000.00

I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge, that the bid tabulation presented is a true and 
correct copy of the bids received for this project.

ALTERNATES

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST ESTIMATE  - ALTERNATES 

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST ESTIMATE - BASE BID

-$30,275.00

$1,327,725.00

N/A

N/A



  
 
 

 
 

December 16, 2021 
 

Mr. Tony Gianesi 
Elkhart Community School Corporation 
2720 California Rd 
Elkhart, IN  46514 
 

 
RE: Elkhart Community Schools Transportation Fuel Center– Review of Bids  

Dear Mr. Gianesi: 
 
We reviewed the Itemized Proposals of the lone Bidder, R. Yoder Construction, Inc., for the Elkhart Community Schools 
Transportation Fuel Center project rebid. A full examination of the bid documents was completed to ensure that the required 
affidavits, certifications, bonds, and other necessary documentation had been included. A Certified Bid Tabulation form of the 
project is attached to this letter.  
 
Based on the above information, it is our engineering opinion that R. Yoder Construction, Inc., submitted the lowest responsive 
Bid and included all the necessary documents.  
 
When this project was initially bid in July, 2021, the contractor submitted a Base Bid of $1,390,000.00, but the project was 
rejected due to only receiving one bid and at a greater than anticipated cost.  Since the initial bidding occurred, we worked 
with the school to value engineer the project to look for ways to reduce cost without compromising the quality or substance of 
the project.  The contractor submitted a Base Bid of $1,358,000.00, with a deduction of $13,500.00 for Alternate 1, and 
deduction of $16,775.00 for Alternate 2, if selected. It is our engineering recommendation that the Elkhart Community School 
Corporation should accept the bid of R. Yoder Construction, Inc., for the Project: Elkhart Community Schools Transportation 
Fuel Center, for the Base Bid contract amount of $1,358,000.00 and reject Alternate 1 and Alternate 2, for a contract amount 
totaling $1,358,000.00, contingent upon meeting with the contractor to further discuss ideas for possible change orders to 
further reduce costs, as stated by the contractor.  
 
Should you have any questions or concerns please contact me at (574) 232-4388 or by email at 
acunningham@jpr1source.com.   
 
 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Andrew Cunningham, PLA, Vice President 
acunningham@jpr1source.com 
574-232-4388 

      G:\2020 Projects\2020-0004\Bidding\Bid Package 2\REBID - Fall 2021 

mailto:acunningham@jpr1source.com
mailto:acunningham@jpr1source.com






















































































































CASH:

     Petty Cash                                          500.00$                
     Lunch Change Fund 2,010.00               

BANK ACCOUNTS:

     Teachers Credit Union                                                       2,973,304.34$      
     Lake City Bank – Accounts Payable (1,655,372.00)       
     Lake City Bank – Payroll Account                                      (14,156.09)            
     Lake City Bank – Flex Account                                          78,977.70             
     Lake City Bank – Merchant Account                                  -                        
     Lake City Bank – Prepaid Lunch                                        150,386.17           
     Lake City Bank – Deposit Account 29,203,074.16      
     Lake City Bank – Book Rental -                        
     BMO Harris Bank (UMR insurance) 407,420.00           

INVESTMENTS:

     Certificate of Deposit  -                        
                                                                                                                            

ACCOUNT BALANCES/INVESTMENT DETAIL
November 2021

31,146,144.28$       
















	Agenda
	Minutes - Public Work Session December 14, 2021
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - December 14 2021
	Gift Acceptance - District
	Gift Acceptance - HS Athletics
	Fundraisers
	Conference Leave Requests
	Grant Submission
	Overnight Trip Request
	Personnel Report
	Memo - Bus Helper and Driver Retention
	Fuel Bid Memo
	Memo - Fuel Center
	Fuel Center Bid Tab
	Bid Tabulation

	Fuel Center Bid Review JPR
	Fuel Center Bid Form - R Yoder Constr
	Memo - Elevate K12 Scope
	ESSER Projects Daly WSMS EHS
	Resolution to Transfer from Education to Operations
	Resolution Rainy Day Transf
	Balance Sheet - November
	ESSER Update
	Insurance Update

